United Nations Nations Unies
ECONOMIC CONSEIL B

E/AC.6/SR.16

AND - ECONOMIQUE 8 atch 1548
SOCIAL COUNCIL ET SOCIAL CRIGINAL: FRENCH

N/ /se VA
S HARCH /74F
ENGLISH

ORIG .} ERENICH

ECONOMIC COMMITTEE
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE SIXTEENTH MEETING

Lake Success, ‘New York
Tucsdey, 2 March 1948, at 3.10 p.m.

Prescnt:
Chairman: Mr, SANTA CRUZ (Chile)

Australia Mr. Heyward
Brazil Mr, Campos
Byelorussian Sovict

Sociaelist Republic Mrs, Uralova
Canada Mr, Pollock
Chile Mr. Gonzalecs
China Mr. Chang
Denmark Mr, Borberg
France Mr, Ordonncau
Lebanon Mr, Ghorre
Netherlands Mr, Parijn
New Zecaland Mr, Lendrum
Peru Mr. Monge
Poland Mr. Lange
Turkey Mr, Savut
Union of Soviet

Socialist Republics Mr, Arutiunian
United Kingdom Mr, Phillips
United Stetes of America Mr, Stincbower
Venezuela Mr,. Stolk

Also prescnt: Yugoslavia Mr, Vilfen

Representatives of Specialized Agencies:
International Bank for
Reconstruction and
Development Mr. Lopez-Herrartec
1 0 International Monectary Fund Mr, Wang

ions of this summary record provided for in the rules of

18 MAR o Yo Mr, Delavonay, Director, Editorial Division, Room cc-87, Lake
1®Baccess, Corrections should be accompanicd by or incorporated in a
NITED NAT'lCEter written on headcd notepaper and enclosed in an envelope marked
ARCHIvEes'Urgent" and bearing the appropriate symbol number,
§ /o R R



E/AC.6/SR.16

Page 2
Secretariat: Mr. Kerno (Assistant Secretary-General in charge
of the Legal Department)
Mr. Dumontet (Secretary of the Economic Committee)

CONTINUATION OF THE DISCUSSION OF THE REQUEST BY THE FEDERAL PEOPLE'S
REPUBLIC OF YUGOSIAVIA CONCERNING THE DAMAGE CAUSED TO IT BY THE WITHHOLDING
OF ITS GOLD RESERVES BY THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA (Documents E/624,
E/AC.6/21, E/AC.6/23 and E/AC.6/25)

The CHAIRMAN pointed out that the Economic Committee should confine
itself to considering the question of the Council's competence and asked
speakers not to discuss the substance of the question.

On the strength of Article 69 of the Charter he would invite the
representative of Yugoslavia to take part in the discussion without a
right to vote.

Mr. VILFAN (Yugoslevia) was anxious, he said, to help in settling
the problem of the Council's competence, not only in the present case, but
in all cases of that kind.

He dealt first with the objections raised by certain delegations.

It had been said that this was a dispute between two countries and

that the Council was not competent to deal with a dispute. The Australian
representative maintained that it was a dispute which could be settled by
negotiations, arbitration, or recourse to the International Court of Justice.

It had also been argued by the United States representative for
instance that the Council could not deal with a question that affected
the interests of one country only, for its function was to study the major
social and economic problems which arose throughout the world in their broad
outlines and in their gemeral aspect, and not to deal with disputes between
naticns; this argument wes taken up by the Brazilisn and -Austrelian
representatives,

He wished to restate his country's position. Yugoslavia had not
asked the Council to act as a tribunal, to pass Judgment or to decide
such questions as the. ownership of the gold, its exact amount, the legal
obligation to restore it or the time within which it should be restored.
Yugoslavia was only asking the Council to recommend that the United States
restore the gold reserve, and this was an economic recommendation. There
was no question of a dispute between the United States and Yugoslavia.

All questions of substance and law which might call for the intervention
of the Internmational Court of Justice, as the Australian representative
had suggested, were perfectly clear. There was no legal dispute. The
United States Government admitted that the gold reserves were the property

Jof the



E/AC.6/SR.16
? Page 3

e

of ‘the Yugoslav Government, The question of claims and ‘counter-claims -
was absolutely separate and any attenpt t0 connect the two tended to
confuse the problem.’ None of the cases mentioned in the Australian
representative's note (docment E/AC.6/23) applied to”the question before
them, He quoted from & statement made by the United. States representative
at & plenary meeting in which he had referred to a-simultanéous settlement
as being the most practica.l“ and the easiest solirtion. The United States
Government was talking not of what was right but of what was advisable;
1t thought’ that the withholding of the Yugoslav gold was the "most
practical method of dealing with other outstanding questions commected
with Yugoslavia., The question was a simple ome:. was it admissable for -
one country to achieve thke aims of its national policy by damaging another
country? It was for the Council to decide whether the attitude:-of the
United States could be reconeiléd with aohievenent of the purposes laid down
in Article 55 of the Charter. ' ‘
'The general question was the interpretation of an obligation ar:lsing
out of the Charter , and the Council could not refuseé to admit its
competencp in such a matter; it could only reply yes or no-to the'.
question whether or not a State was viclating the provisions of the
Charter, If the Council was not interested in a violation of ‘the
Charter, the question arose whether such an obligation atill‘ held good.
If the COuncil admitted that the question concerned only two countries
and did not, therefore, fall within its competence, this meant that it
was interested in the statements of principles in Chapter IX, but not in
their ap'glicatim. :
He did not wish to re-emphasize the serious effects which the
United Sta‘bes attitude would have on the economic life of Yugoslavia;’
such as the lowering of the standard of living, the irrational use
" of manpower, due to the impossiblity of importing machinery, and the
paralysis of the country's production and reconstruction ‘efférts.
Yugsoslavia had to export badly needed produce, éspecislly foodstuffs, -
at the expense of her population in order to be able to import essential
goods. The damage thus done to Yugoslav economy affected European -
economy as a whole; he: neeéd hardly remind the Council how interdependent
the economy of Europe was." - . " .
Although the Australian representative had admitted at a plenary maet:lns
(docuwment E/AC,6/18) that the Council had every right to deal with
disputes when a question of ecomomic policy had- to be decided, this view.
found no further place in the arguments submitted by the Australian
representative on 1 March (document E/AC,6/23); that indicated an attempt
to treat the question of. Yugoslav gold as a "legal dispute”. :



E/AC.6/SR.: 16
Page 4 -

By virtue of Article 55, which laid down the:principles of. :
international econémic and social coroperation, of Article 56, in which '
Member States pledged themselves to "take joint and separate action”
for the achievenent df these purposes, of Article 60, which vested
in the Ecomamic &t Sécial Council, under the authority of the Gemeral
Assenbly, responsiblity for the discharge of the functions set forth
in Chapter IX, and, lastly, in view of Artigle 62, paragraph 1, which
enacted that the' Council might make recommendations to States Menbers
on all the questions refsrred $o in Chapter IX, the Council was Tully ..
competent to' éémisfder and' dettle the question brought up by the Yugwslav,
delegation. ¥ The Yudodlav representative, accordingl_.y, submitted ;__the-draff.
resolution ‘containéd 1x dooument E/AC.6/27. - i

Mr., ‘STINEBOWER (United States of America) said the reason why the .
' United States delegation had mot ipsieted on the question of the Yugoslav.
gold being withdrawn from the agenda was because they did not want
to give the impression that they were trying to avoid a discussion. After
long discussion 4in plenary session, it was now time to decide whether,
questions of this kind lay -within the Council's Jjurisdiction, and whether
it had power to make recommeéndations to individual States Members.,

The position of 'thé United States delegation on this matter had
not chaiged since thé San Francisco Conference. : '

Thée only Article in the Charter which gave the Council power to
make recoimendations was Article-62 (1).. The historical background of ,
this Article should be recalled:in order-to decide whether its text, impl:},ed
that the Council could make direct recommendations to any Government
concerning a disagreement between two parties, or vwhether it merely referred
to recommendations of a genexral nature. - . 1 - :

The Dumba¥ton Oaks proposals aimed at giving the Council the pover .
to make redommendations, without specifying to whom such recommquations.,
should be addressed. When the Australian representative explicitly suggested
that the Council be empowered t0 make recommendations ta particylar .. .
Members; the San Francisco Oonferente decided to veject that proposal. .
As there were no official records of the proceedings 'of sub-commiittees .
at San Francisco g Mr. Stitiebower showed by quotations from the notes of
] the United States delegation, that the drafting sub-committee had -
adopted ‘s’ text designed to indtcaté clesrly that the recommendations
and reports of thé Council ghould be addressed t6 all the States Members.
and not’ merely to certain of them. The question had not been brought- up
again at the Conference an& Artlcle 62 had 'not been bas:lcally medified.

i ‘ " ﬁi‘-i o f,



’ﬁ/Ac:Q&.IS'
.

o ;

Further y Article 62 as at present worded , made a clear distinction,
1t gave ‘the Council pover to make Yecommendations "to the specialized
agencies concerned" ’ vhereas 1t merely ta.lked of 'Members of the United s
Fotiont" without go:lng into detail.

In the light of th:ls historical survey 1t was obvious that the
Charter could not be construed as empowering the Council to mke
recomepdations to ,any Member Goverment in particular. 'I‘he Cmmcil
wag therefore not aw to deal with the Yugoslav molutioa. : ,

With regard to the a.ueged precedent of the decision taken when v
the question of the Yugoslav and Czechoslovak vedsels was &i;omod, ;
the Un,‘;ted States, in submitting its resolution, had widened the scope a
of the problem, which at the outset had. concemd only two c;mptr.tea, by
rega:&tng it as an mpoctant elemnt in the econamic recmtruotion of that
part of Europe and calling for & political decision. A ‘

With regaro to the Secretariat's note (document E/AC. 6/25) ,

m. Stinebomr also ggrm that the Council had power to aocj,de as

to its own jurdsaiotion. But he cheerved that the Secretariet mote ..
distinguished between a diapute and a problem. That distim'bion did M
a.pply in this mtiouhr case, since the assertion of the Yugoslav
delegation vas invalidated by the Juridioal history of Article 62,
Again, from thn Seere!beﬂat note, it vould appear that the povers. or the
Counc;ll were defined by Article 62 (1) as amplified by Articls 55
Actually, under the teme of Article 60, the povers of the cotmqu. were
defined by Chapter X (Article 61 to T2), so that Article 55 corld not

. be invoked o extom these povers. On the questien !ﬂntber the Coumi-l

, vas oompetent o copeider an econcmic disputo, t.’oe note oonq\lm thet it
was, s:taoe there vas no provigiop to, the contrary in the Charter. That
ld.nd of mget!ve eolutiou was, he tbought, dangerous.

e The Charter 4id not overlook the problem of tho eottlmnt ct
m vhich was dealt with in Chapter VI. If the signatouec hod.
m:lm to lay a.own the prooodure for %he settlement of dtspntoe Gt an
economic nature, they might have taken Chapter VI as & model. Tat :
;¥as vhy ¥he Upited States delegation thought the Council had no. pmr to
deal wi.th 1ndividua1 oases of this type On this point the delogetd.on
ciieagreed. wi.th the Secretariat's note, ] g S MR

He nesnod what the mua States representative had ;o:td at a |
plemry meeting of the Council, to the effect that Article & (,t) was tm
only. part o:r the Charter which opuld eorve as. & a;rmm basis for action
by the Cmmcil on a que;uog such gs that of the -Yugoslav gold, end that
the Cmmcil had no power whatsoever to act as a court of arbitration, es
8 eonciliator or as a court of justice,

o

/Mie statement



B/iC.6/sR.16
Page 6

.Af'

This statement of the limitations laid down in.the Charter: clearly
1ndicated that the ‘Council could not deal with this item of the agenda,
or with other similar cases which might occur in the future. The
United States representative gubmitted a draft resolution, which had
been distributed as document E/AC.6/26, to the effect that the matter did
not fall within the Council's jurisdiction. g«

Mr, KERNO (Assistant Secretary-General in charge of the Legal
Department) gave the views of the Secretariat (document E/AC.6/25).

First of all, it should be understood that the Council itself could
decide whether or not a question vas within its Jurisdiction and the
United States representative had signiﬂed his agreement on this point.
The matter at issue was whether a dispute between two or more Members
of the United Nations could lie within the jurisdiction of the Coumcil.
It was the Secretariat's opiniem that the Council vas not competent to
deal with such matters unless the dispute were of an economic nature.
It was for the Council in each case to determine whether the Jjuridical
or the 'e‘conomie aspect was of greater i_mpoptance in the dispute referred
to 1t. If it were decided that the economic problem was the more
important, then it would lie within the Jurisdiction of the Council.

The United States representative had opposed this interpretation of
Article 62 (1) of th‘ez'Cha.rter, end had based his arguments on the
preparatory work done at San Francisco, but he had ‘himself pointed out
that there were no minutes of the meetings to which he was referring.: The
reason why 1o minutes had been kept was precisely because it was desired
to avoid excessive resort being made in future to the method of
historical mterpretation. The desire expressed at San Francisco was that
the Charter should be interpretbd in a ;iberal fashion. In the case of the
Economic and Social Couneil in particular, satisfaction had been felt
at San Francisco because this new body had been established with very wide
powers', vhich was a new departure as comﬁared with the League of Nations.

The Legal Department of the Secretariat had conscientiously carried
out the task entrusted to it. It was for the Committee to decide the
matter. ;

Mr. LAl\TGE (Poland) theught there was little to add to the Secretariat's
note. Everyone apparently agreed with 1ts first two conslusions , namely,
that the Council could determine the scope of its own jurisdiction, and
that it was entitled to deal with any :l.nternatioqal economic problem.

But opinions differed on the ;I.as_t_ two points as to whether the Council
could deal with a dispute of an 'eeqnem_ic character. The dispute between
Yugoslavia dnd ‘the United States did not really raige any legal difficulty.

/The ownership



ke L,

Page 7

The ownership of the l’tlgoelav gold deposited with the United S’bates was
not contested and the two parties also agreed on the assent:lal facts of
the case. The problem was actual]q whether or not certain measures taken
by the United States were proper from the point of view ‘of their influence
on intemtional economic relations and the:lr effect on Yugoslavia's
economic recovery.

Could the Cmmcil express an opinion on this point? Here the ..
Secretariat note did a useful service by pointing out that Articles 55 {b)
and 62 (1) ‘of the Charter derinod the Council's responaibilities and :
powers of reconmendation so far as international economic and social problems
were concernsd. Was a bilam 8ispute an international economic problem?
The United States repromtatm meintained that, according to a report
by a San Franciaco Dra.fting Committee, the Council could only intervene
in a problem that affected all the Members of the Orgenigzation. But it
would seeém Aifficult to base a hﬁl argument on that eonsideration,
parbieularly as the Assistant Secretary-Gencraa had made 1t clea: that
the intention-of the San Francisco Confereme had been to prevent the Charter
being given a too limited historical interpretation. '

Moreover, there were precedents; The Council had already considered
problems which did not directl’y'ai;fect all the Members of the United Nations.
Examples which could be quoted were the problems of the devastated areas
&nd regional conferenccs, and 1ntemationa1 control of the Danubs, s which
directly concerned only a group of Members.

The guestion now at iuaue affected tha mterests of only two States, ‘
but economic interdependence was' such M delay 50 the economic
reconstruction of any one sountry coum obvioualy be injurious to Ewrope
as a whole and even to the entire world, /

 Incontestedly, the reconstruction of the Buropean coun%r‘icc was e
general problem and 1t eould therefore hardly be argued that the question
of the Yugoglav gold was not an international economic problem, ceﬁcez_'ning
which Article 62 of the Charter clearly gave the Council authority to make.
recoumendations. To admit that the Council was not emtitled to deal with,
this matter would be to create a dsngerous precedent. If the Econonic a,ndv'
Social Council had no power to examine the mtter, vhat organ had? As
had slready been stated, it was not a8 legal dispute and therefore did not
fall within the jurisdietien of the Intemticml Court of Justice. Again,
although' the problem:-was indeed’ important, still it could not be said that
it was likely to endanger intcrnctional peace and security, so it did not
come within the jurisdiction of the Security Coumncil, The General Assembly
could probebly deal with it, but it was not due to meet until next autumn.

j/Consequently,



EfAC 5/53‘16
Page 8

Consequently, the, Econemic apd- Social Council was the only:organ that could

without. excessiye. delay-remedy the situwation.which had been breught to its

notice,. [ g i 58 T i g
., As the Council- had the power q.nd as none of its Members would wish

to alldw the Indefinite. continuance of a situation'which was hampering .

the recovery of a State Member, the Council ought to deal with the matter.

»  Mr. HEYWARD (Australia} supported the view takem by the .Secretariat

tlf;?t disputes of a speeificslly economic nature fell within the Jurisdiction

of the Coupeil, Any,other desision might prove very awkward, .for it might

- happen.that ap econopic.problem of an international nature, on which. :

- there.yere. certain differences of opinion, would syddenly assume the
propqr,ﬁ;lpns of a Qispute and thus cease.to be within the jurisdiction of
the ‘CQu';}cil vhich was engaged in examining it. Some points in the
Secretariat's .:;ote s howgver, were pot very.clear.to the Australian
delegat:.:{.ox;. . For instence, the note stated that a dispute involving.an*
"intrigate" point of law fell .outside the jurisdiction of the Council..:

- A preferable criterion would. seem to be to.decide whether a dispute ought: *

to be settled by legal procedure .or whether it was essentially am.- . . '
intqmtignal one of an economfc pature,, ;.ow - TR

+, Further, fhe conclugions contained 4. pagagraphs (c) and (d), on i
paggq).é and 7 of, the dooument (English: text) did not seem very clear eitker.
r..0n.the yeal point.at igsue the first question to decide was: -whether
the United States had acted within ‘its rights dn freezing the Yugoslaw: : '’
gold rgeeryes. sThue, the question was primarily e legal one;.and until
that point-wag.gettled.there yould .be ne solption of.the problemi-- . . =
.. &0, eonclusion, the Australian. delegate -thought that the parties: ought
to continue their negotiations or refer.the metter to:the International

Court of.Justice.. No recommgndatien by:the founcii could be contemplated

80.]9ng as the legal.point which was the crux.of-the problem rdwained =~ -

upasbtled, il ks A YR Dot Ryt T e

- «Mr. STINEBOWER . (United States of Amrica) *thought that- sény. > .

MWBtmding about, the definition of an internationsl problam mush be -

avoided.. The Charter itsplf.stated that the Counéil was ndt entitled. to .

address reconmendations to-one State Member in perticular but that its

recommendations .must be addressed "to the -Members. of, the Organization”.

The representative of Poland. had spoken of precedents, but in fact the

Council had never addressed reconmendations to individual-governménts.

EEY

t 2 Vgl

SRR . T ./mother cases,



f

B/AC.6/SR.16
Page 9

42 | - -
-

In other cases, as for instance that of the Interim Committee,
certain governments had adopted a vary restrictive attitude and had
maintained that anything not provided for in the Charter was-anti-
constitutional. It was perhaps only right that in the present case these
same govermments should accept a very strict interpretation of the Charter.

Mr. IANGE (Poland) pointed out that, as mentioned in the Secretariat
Note, it had been the United States delegation itself which, in the case
. of international traffic on the Danube, proposed a resolution recommending
the convening of a conference. of all interested States; that resolution
had been adopted by the Council. At that time, therefore, the
United States delegation quite recognized, as the Polish delegation still.
believed, that a recommendatiom dy the Council might apply to a group of.
Members of the United Nations and not to them all. .

But even if the Council felt it had no power to make recomendations
applying to one or two States Members only, it could nevertheless
study the problem with the object of making a gemeral recommendation, :
indicating, for instance, that the assets of allied countries which had
during the war been deposited with other-allied coumtries should now be .
unfrozen.,

Mr. PHILLIPS (United Kingdom) said that the Yugoalav repreaentative
had made it clear that he was asking the Council not to act as a court of :
law but to édopt a regsolution of an economic nature dealing with economic
losses. In fact, however, the Council could not, make a recomendatioﬁ
on the economic aspect of the prdblem without taking sides in the L
~ dispute; so it would, in the long run, be acting as a court of law, and
that would involve the detailed study of e very complex guestion.

If, as the Polish representative had suggested, the Council were
to adopt the course of expressing its opinion on the fitmsa or otherwise
of economic measures tsken 'by the Umited States or any other States Members,
there would be a risk of its agenda being loaded with such questions and
of the Coundil being thus prevented from devoting itself to its real task,
which was to sﬁuﬂy ganeral economic and social problems and to draft
conventions :ln that field.

Those’ who w:lshed the Council to affirm its competence had argued
that this was en écomomic dispute; 'but the same could be said of any digpute.
It lm.d also been said that, though the dispute was bilateral, its g
Wﬁquﬂncen necessarily affected other States, It was true that in the
international economic sphere everything was iutar-comected, but that
wes 10 reason why every bilateral mpﬁte should be ‘submitted to the
Couneil.,

/It was the



E/AC.6/SR.16
Page. 10

Tt was the United Kingdom delegetion's opinion that a distinction
should be drawn between general economic and social questioms, which
were within the dﬁimcil's_provinqe ,.and questions that were the subject
of disputes between two States Meﬁbei's of the United Nafions with vhich
the Council was not obliged to deal.

: . As the United States repreaexrbetive had said, it had been decided
at the San Francisco Conference that the Economic and Social COunc:ll was
not competent to take juridical action in disputea between States,

The United Kingdom de;.ega#im had no desire whatsoever to see
the dispute between the United States and Yugoslavie prolonged. It
vas entirely for the very sound reasons advanced by the United States
delegation that the United Kingdom would vote against the Yugoslav
proposal.

Mr, VILFAN (Yugoslavia) mted that tho centre of gravity of the
United States delegation's attitude had been displaced. The accent.
had first been laid on the legal nature of the dispute, and now lt
was based on the argument that the Council was not competent because
its i‘ecomendatione coulﬂ, be addressed only to all the Members of tne
United Netions. This was substantial progress, because the Yugoslav
delegation would be willing, as Mr. lange had suggested, tc give the
proposed: resolution a general extension.

Nevertheless, other members of the Cemcil and in particular
the Australian representative, had taken over the argument that this
was fundementally a legal dispute, with which the Council had no
power to deal. But, as the Yugoslav delegation had already pointed out,
it could not be said that this was a legal dispute, since the two
delegations were in complete agreement on the legal question. Ome
could read and re-read Mr. Thorp's account without finding either .an
econbmic reason or a légal reason for the United States attitude,
but merely an opportunist reason. ;

The United Kingdom representative had ‘stressed the fact that the:
problem affected only the interests of two cowitries. It was well known
that prosperity, like peace, wds indivisible. But, even assuming that
the interests of Yugoslavie alone were involved, could the Council remain
indifferent to a problem the consequences of which directly affected the
standard of living and the 'economic reconstruction of a European-country?
Yugoslavia was among the countries which benefited under’ the Children's
Emergency Fund. ‘Tt would really be a curiots contradiction to assist the
children of Yugoslavia on the one hand and to refuse, on the other, to take
the necegsary stepﬁ "to help their parents Ffeed them. The Yugoslav
delegation hoped that the Economic and Social Council would not aliow
such a contrediction.

v

The meeting rose at 5.50 p.m.




